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I. STATEMENT

1. This is a civil penalty assessment (CPAN) proceeding brought by the Staff of the Colorado Public Utilities Commission (Staff) against the Respondent, Ron and Shelley Vigil, doing business as A-Abcott Limousines (A-Abcott), wherein it is alleged that A-Abcott has violated the Commission’s Rules Regulating Safety for Motor Vehicle Carriers and Establishing Civil Penalties, 4 Code of Colorado Regulations (CCR) 723-15-2.1.

2. In CPAN No. 78133 Staff alleges that A-Abcott violated Part 391.45(a) of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) on January 28, 2006.
  See, Exhibit 1.  The subject CPAN seeks imposition of a civil penalty in the amount of $200.00.

3. The matter was set for hearing at the Commission’s Offices in Denver, Colorado, on April 11, 2006, pursuant to an Order Setting Hearing and Notice of Hearing issued by the Commission on February 21, 2006.

4. The undersigned Administrative Law Judge called the matter for hearing at the assigned time and place.  Staff appeared through its legal counsel.  No appearance was entered by or on behalf of A-Abcott.  During the course of the hearing, Exhibits 1 and 2 were identified, offered, and admitted into evidence.  Testimony was received from Mr. Tony Munoz, one of the Commission’s Criminal Investigators, in support of the allegations contained in the subject CPAN.

5. In accordance with § 40-6-109, C.R.S., the undersigned now transmits to the Commission the record and exhibits in this proceeding along with a written recommended decision.

II. findings of fact

6. A-Abcott provides luxury limousine services within the State of Colorado pursuant to a registration issued to it by the Commission (Registration No. LL-01329).  The business address provided to the Commission by A-Abcott is 6969 West 90th Avenue 924, Broomfield, Colorado 80021.  See, Exhibit 1.  

7. On January 28, 2006, Mr. Munoz was assigned the task of inspecting vehicles that were providing transportation services on behalf of attendees of the Cherry Creek Snowball at Cherry Creek High School in Greenwood Village, Colorado.  At about 10:30 p.m. he observed Shelley Vigil, one of A-Abcotts’s owners, operating a white stretch luxury limousine vehicle for this purpose.  He asked Ms. Vigil to produce her driver’s license, evidence of the authority granted to A-Abcott by the Commission to provide the subject service, and a certificate evidencing her physical qualification to operate commercial motor vehicles as required by 49 CFR 391.45(a).  Ms. Vigil produced her driver’s license and evidence of A-Abcott’s authority to provide the service.  However, she was unable to produce the physical qualification certificate.  She advised Mr. Munoz that she had not secured such a certificate.

8. On January 30, 2006, Mr. Munoz prepared CPAN No. 78133.  See, Exhibit 1.  It was mailed to A-Abcott by United States Certified Mail on February 1, 2006, at the address referred to in paragraph 6 above.  A-Abcott acknowledged its receipt of the subject CPAN on February 3, 2006.  See, Exhibit 2. 

III. discussion; findings 

9. Subject to certain exceptions, 49 CFR 391.45 requires that individuals operating commercial motor vehicles be medically examined by a qualified medical examiner for the purpose of determining that they are physically qualified to operate such vehicles.  If the examiner determines that an individual is so qualified, he/she is required to issue a certificate to that effect.  See, 49 CFR 391.43(g).  Individuals are then required to carry the certificate on their person when operating commercial motor vehicles.  See, 49 CFR 391.41(a).

10. A commercial motor vehicle is defined as “[A] motor vehicle operated by a motor vehicle carrier subject to regulation under articles…16 of Title 40, C.R.S.”  See, 4 CCR 723-15-4.3.  A-Abcott provides its luxury limousine transportation services pursuant to a registration issued to it by the Commission under Article 16 of Title 40, C.R.S.  Therefore, it follows that the vehicle being operated by Ms. Vigil on January 28, 2006, was a commercial motor vehicle and that she was required to have the certificate required by 49 CFR 391.45 on her person at that time.  It is undisputed that she did not.

11. Every person who intentionally violates 49 CFR 391.45 may be assessed a civil penalty of up to $200.00 for each violation.  See, 4 CCR 723-15-12.5.  A person shall be deemed to have intentionally violated 49 CFR 391.45 if, after having been issued a written notification of such violation, violates it again.  See, 4 CCR 723-15-12.10.

12. On or about May 27, 2004, the Staff issued A-Abcott CPAN No. 28611.  CPAN No. 28611 contained an allegation that A-Abcott had violated 49 CFR 391.45 on or about May 8, 2004, as a result of the failure of Ron Vigil, the other A-Abcott owner, to carry the medical certificate required by that rule when operating a commercial motor vehicle.  See also, Decision No. R04-1411.  This satisfies the notice requirement contained in 4 CCR 723-15-12.10 and supports a conclusion that the violation set forth in CPAN No. 78133 was intentional within the meaning of 4 CCR 723-15-12.5. 

IV. conclUSIONS

13. Staff has sustained its burden of proving the allegation contained in CPAN No. 78133 by a preponderance of the evidence as required by § 40-7-116, C.R.S.  The total penalty for such violation is $200.00.  See, 4 CCR 723-15-12.5.

V. ORDER

A. The Commission Orders That:

1. Ron and Shelley Vigil, doing business as A-Abcott Limousines, are assessed a civil penalty in the amount of $200.00 in connection with Civil Penalty Assessment Notice No. 78133 and shall pay the same within ten days of the effective date of this Order.

2. This Recommended Decision shall be effective on the day it becomes the Decision of the Commission, if that is the case, and is entered as of the date above.  

3. As provided by § 40-6-109, C.R.S., copies of this Recommended Decision shall be served upon the parties, who may file exceptions to it.  

If no exceptions are filed within 20 days after service or within any extended period of time authorized, or unless the decision is stayed by the Commission upon its own motion, the recommended decision shall become the decision of the Commission and subject to the provisions of § 40-6-114, C.R.S.

If a party seeks to amend, modify, annul, or reverse basic findings of fact in its exceptions, that party must request and pay for a transcript to be filed, or the parties may stipulate to portions of the transcript according to the procedure stated in § 40-6-113, C.R.S.  If no transcript or stipulation is filed, the Commission is bound by the facts set out by the administrative law judge and the parties cannot challenge these facts.  This will limit what the Commission can review if exceptions are filed.

4. If exceptions to this Decision are filed, they shall not exceed 30 pages in length, unless the Commission for good cause shown permits this limit to be exceeded.
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Doug Dean, 
Director
	THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE STATE OF COLORADO


DALE E. ISLEY
________________________________

Administrative Law Judge
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� In addition to other federal motor carrier safety rules, 4 CCR 723-15-2.1 incorporates by reference the safety rules contained in the 1998 Edition of 49 CFR 391.45(a).
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